
City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 13, 2018 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, March 13, 2018 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led CVB/Tourism 
Manager Judy Garrett. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by 
Councilmember John R. Holmes, Sr. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Rebecca Fox-Nuelle, Pastor of First 
Presbyterian Church. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.  
 

3. Recognize Daniel Brallier, Juan Martinez and David Londenberg for their efforts in 
thwarting an attempted kidnapping. 

 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 13, 2018 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items 4-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. February 27, 2018, City Council Workshop Meeting 
B. February 27, 2018, City Council Meeting 

 
5. Consider a resolution approving a reduction in rates charged by Atmos Energy 

Corporation, Mid-Tex Division, and authorizing consent to a reduction in rates 
charged by Atmos Pipeline Texas, related to the reduction in the Federal 
Corporation tax rate. 
 

Regular Agenda 
 
6. A. Receive a report on operations of the Belton Christian Youth Center (BCYC); and 
 

B. Consider amendments to the lease agreement between BCYC and the City. 
 
7. Receive a report from Aaron Farmer of Retail Coach regarding Belton’s Retail 

Development Strategy. 
 
8. Receive a presentation on the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal 

Year 2017. 
 
9. Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the 

Sparta Road Pump Station Improvements Project, and any change orders 
associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under State law. 

 
10. Receive a report on the City’s Stormwater Management Plan and Drainage 

Projects/Programs. 
 
11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 

agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and Associates Engineers for the design of the 
Mesquite Road Drainage Improvements. 

 
Executive Session 
 
12. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, Chapter 

551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the authority 
contained in Section 551.076, Deliberation Regarding Security Devices or Security 
Audits. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 13, 2018 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 
13. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the 
authority contained in Section 551.072, for a deliberation regarding real property. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any 
issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 13, 2018 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, March 13, 2018 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led CVB/Tourism 
Manager Judy Garrett. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by 
Councilmember John R. Holmes, Sr. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Rebecca Fox-Nuelle, Pastor of First 
Presbyterian Church. 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.  
 

3. Recognize Daniel Brallier, Juan Martinez and David Londenberg for their 
efforts in thwarting an attempted kidnapping. 

 
On January 9, 2018, a lady who had been using the hike and bike trail was getting 
back into her car near BCYC when she was accosted by a man. The suspect, 
Nathan Gutierrez, forced the victim into her car in an attempt to take her and the 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 13, 2018 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

car. Fortunately, a good Samaritan, Daniel Brallier, saw what was happening and 
immediately reacted by running to the victim’s aid and pulling the suspect away 
from her. Two other gentlemen, Juan Martinez and David Londenberg, also leaped 
into action and assisted Daniel with subduing the suspect until police arrived. 
Gutierrez was arrested and charged with Robbery. He is currently in the Bell 
County Jail for Robbery and a fugitive warrant out of Arizona. If it were not for these 
three heroes, the victim would have been kidnapped by this violent criminal. 
Citizens like, Daniel Brallier, Juan Martinez, and David Londenberg, are examples 
of the people that make our community a great place. They saved the victim’s life 
with their heroic act and the Belton Police Department will be presenting each of 
them with a Lifesaving medal.     

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items 4-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. February 27, 2018, City Council Workshop Meeting 
B. February 27, 2018, City Council Meeting 

 
Copies of the minutes are attached. Recommend approval. 
 

5. Consider a resolution approving a reduction in rates charged by Atmos 
Energy Corporation, Mid-Tex Division, and authorizing consent to a reduction 
in rates charged by Atmos Pipeline Texas, related to the reduction in the 
Federal Corporation tax rate. 
 
See Staff Report from Director of Finance Brandon Bozon. Recommend adoption of 
the resolution allowing rate reductions for Atmos customers in Belton. 
 

Regular Agenda 
 
6. A. Receive a report on operations of the Belton Christian Youth Center 

(BCYC); and 
 

B. Consider amendments to the lease agreement between BCYC and the City. 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Parks & Recreation Matt Bates. Recommend 
receive report from BCYC and approve contract amendments.  

 
7. Receive a report from Aaron Farmer of Retail Coach regarding Belton’s Retail 

Development Strategy. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
March 13, 2018 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Aaron Farmer of Retail Coach will provide information on Belton’s Retail Strategy. 
No action will be required of the Council. 
 

8. Receive a presentation on the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 
Fiscal Year 2017. 

 
Kristy Davis of Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell will present the FY2017 CAFR. 
No action will be required of the Council. 

9. Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract 
for the Sparta Road Pump Station Improvements Project, and any change 
orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized 
under State law. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend award 
of the contract to Wallace Controls & Electric as presented. 

 
10. Receive a report on the City’s Stormwater Management Plan and Drainage 

Projects/Programs. 
 

Director of Public Works Angellia Points will provide an update on the City’s 
Stormwater Management Plan and Drainage Projects/Programs. No action will be 
required of the Council. 

 
11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 

agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and Associates Engineers for the design of 
the Mesquite Road Drainage Improvements. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend award 
of the contract to Kasberg, Patrick and Associates Engineers as presented. 

 
Executive Session 
 
12. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, Chapter 

551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the authority 
contained in Section 551.076, Deliberation Regarding Security Devices or Security 
Audits. 

 
13. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the 
authority contained in Section 551.072, for a deliberation regarding real property. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any 
issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



Belton City Council Workshop Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – 4:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in workshop session in the Smith Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem Craig Pearson and Councilmembers David K. Leigh, Paul Sanderford, Dan 
Kirkley, Guy O’Banion and John R. Holmes, Sr. Staff present included Sam Listi, John 
Messer and Amy Casey. Director of Finance Brandon Bozon and Director of Human 
Resources Charlotte Walker were present for Item 3. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Marion Grayson called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m. The 

Mayor announced that the City Council would go into Executive Session for the 
following items: 

 
Executive Session 
 
2. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.072, for a deliberation regarding 
real property. 

 
3. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.074, Personnel. 
 

4. Adjourn. The Mayor reopened the meeting at 5:27 p.m., and there being no further 
business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 
 

 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson (arrived 
5:43 p.m.), Mayor Pro Tem Craig Pearson and Councilmembers David K. Leigh, Paul 
Sanderford, Dan Kirkley, Guy O’Banion and John R. Holmes, Sr. Staff present included 
Sam Listi, John Messer, Gene Ellis, Amy Casey, Brandon Bozon, Chris Brown, Matt 
Bates, Paul Romer, Bob van Til, Kim Kroll, Angellia Points, Cynthia Hernandez, Judy 
Garrett, Cheryl Maxwell and Charlotte Walker. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Public Information Officer Paul 
Romer, the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Mayor Pro Tem Craig 
Pearson, and the Invocation was given by Tasha Roberts, Executive Director of Helping 
Hands Ministry.  
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Pro Tem Craig Pearson called the meeting to order at 5:32 

p.m.  
 
2. Public Comments. There were none. 

  
3. Recognize City of Temple Public Works employees Steve Picasso and Mike 

Stokes for their cooperation and assistance in relieving a sewer blockage on 
February 14, 2018. 

 
Director of Public Works Angellia Points thanked the City of Temple and two of their 
Public Works employees, Steve Picasso and Mike Stokes, for their assistance in 
helping Belton crews with a sewer blockage on February 14, 2018. Mr. Picasso and 
Mr. Stokes were not able to attend the meeting, so Mrs. Points will mail Certificates 
of Appreciation to them. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 4-10 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4.  Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. February 13, 2018, City Council Workshop Meeting 
B. February 13, 2018, City Council Meeting 

 
5. Consider a resolution nominating the City’s candidate for election to the 

Board of Directors of the Central Texas Water Supply Corporation. (Jeremy 
Allamon) 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 2 
 

  

6. Consider appointments to the Zoning Board of Adjustment. (John Gillette 
replacing Stephanie O’Banion, and Robert Shedore filling a vacant alternate 
position.) 

 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a two-year renewal to the 

contract for professional construction materials testing services with 
Langerman Foster Engineering Company.  

 
8. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Mutual Aid Agreement 

between multiple Bell County agencies. 
 
9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a five-year renewal to the 

Records Management Software Agreement for Police Records with CAPERS 
North America, LLC. 

 
10. Consider approval of a revised employment agreement for the City Manager. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember David K. Leigh, and a second by Councilmember 
Guy O’Banion, the Consent Agenda including the following captioned resolution was 
unanimously approved by a vote of 6-0. 
 

Resolution 2018-07-R 
 

Resolution Nominating Candidate for Election to the Board of Directors at Annual 
Meeting of Central Texas Water Supply Corporation 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
11. Consider a final plat of Dolores Estates, an 8.98 acre tract of land located east 

of IH-35 on the south side of Decker Road in the ETJ of the City limits of 
Belton. 

 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell said this property is located in the ETJ of the 
City of Belton, and there is currently one residence on Lot 1 and two on Lot 2. She 
added that this is a division of property among family members. 
 
This property is located within the Armstrong Water Supply Corporation (WSC) 
CCN, and Armstrong WSC has provided a letter confirming their ability to serve this 
subdivision for domestic service. The water line along Decker Road is a 4” line and 
cannot support a fire hydrant; therefore, a variance is requested and supported by 
staff. 
 
Mrs. Maxwell stated there is no sanitary sewer service available to this property. 
Septic systems are proposed which are subject to review by the Bell County Public 
Health District. She also stated that there are no drainage improvements needed. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 3 
 

  

Mrs. Maxwell explained that the Thoroughfare Plan identifies Decker Road as a 
minor collector street with a required ROW width of 60’. Current ROW is 40’. The 
owners are satisfying their requirement to dedicate half of what is needed by 
including a 10’ ROW dedication on the plat. She added that the developer is 
required to contribute one half the total cost of paving with curb and gutter for the 
portion of Decker Road adjacent to this plat. The applicant has requested an 
exception to this requirement. The Subdivision Ordinance allows waiver of this 
requirement for single family developments not exceeding three lots. Staff supports 
the requested variance for the 245’ of property fronting Decker Road. 
 
According to the Subdivision Ordinance, the developer is required to construct and 
install a 5-foot wide sidewalk along the southern side of Decker Road. A variance to 
this requirement is requested. Staff concurs with the variance request for the 
following reasons: 
 
(1) This development consists of only two large lots with existing residential 

development, so there is no additional impact to the area; 
(2) Properties near this site are already developed which limits the opportunity to 

acquire funds for a future sidewalk; 
(3) The property is currently in the City’s ETJ and improvements to this roadway, 

including sidewalks, are not scheduled; and 
(4) The County is not requiring sidewalks. 
 
Mrs. Maxwell said that residential subdivisions are required to dedicate parkland 
and/or make a financial contribution for the acquisition and development of such 
parkland. A variance to the parkland dedication/fee is requested, and Staff concurs 
with the variance request since there are no plans to develop a public park in this 
vicinity at this time, and these two lots are large with ample open space available on 
each to satisfy the needs of the lot owners.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on February 19, 2018, and unanimously 
recommended approval of the final plat of Dolores Estates, subject to the City’s 
Letter to the Applicant’s Engineer dated February 16, 2018, with the following 
variances recommended for approval, and Staff concurs in that recommendation: 
 
• Decker Road perimeter street improvements  
• Decker Road sidewalk  
• Fire Hydrant  
• Parkland dedication/fee 
 
Councilmember David K. Leigh thinks granting the variances is reasonable since it is 
two lots being split between family members. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember John R. Holmes, Sr., to approve the plat with the 
variances noted, and a second by Councilmember Guy O’Banion, Item 11 was 
unanimously approved by a vote of 6-0. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 4 
 

  

12. Consider a preliminary plat of Taylor Subdivision, a 34.535 acre tract of land 
located west of IH-35 on the east side of FM 1670, south of West Amity Road in 
the ETJ of the City of Belton. 
 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell said that the west side of this property is located 
in Belton’s ETJ. This is primarily a residential subdivision, containing 47 residential 
lots and two commercial lots with frontage on FM 1670. 
 
Mrs. Maxwell explained that this property is located within the Salado Water Supply 
Corporation CCN. An existing 6-inch water line runs along the west side of FM 1670, 
and the applicant proposes to tap this line to construct an 8-inch line throughout the 
subdivision. She said that the City of Belton Fire Code requires a minimum water 
pressure of 1,000 gpm for fire hydrants, but the existing water pressure only 
provides a flow of 900 gpm. The developer is requesting a variance to this 
requirement, and Staff supports the request. 
 
There is no sanitary sewer available to serve this subdivision, so individual septic 
systems are proposed on the lots. Mrs. Maxwell said that an approval letter from the 
Bell County Public Health District is required with final plat submission. 
 
Mrs. Maxwell said the drainage is proposed to be detained on-site, and the property 
will be maintained by the subdivision’s home owners’ association (HOA). She added 
that detailed drainage calculations will be required with the final plat submission. 
 
[Mayor Grayson arrived at 5:43 p.m.] 
 
Maxwell stated that no ROW dedication is needed for FM 1670. Since it is a TxDOT 
roadway, the requirement for perimeter street improvements is not applicable. 
TxDOT approval is required for driveway permits to the commercial lots from FM 
1670. TxDOT has approved access for the entrance roadway, Hollow Drive, and the 
southern commercial lot; however, access to the northern commercial lot was not 
granted. Access to this lot will have to be via Hollow Drive. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended establishing an access limitation to Lot 1, Block 1, a 
minimum distance from FM 1670. She said this issue will be addressed with the final 
plat. The internal roads in this subdivision will be constructed as local streets, with a 
31’ pavement width within a 50’ wide ROW with curb and gutter.   
 
Since FM 1670 is a minor arterial, the developer is required to install a 6-foot wide 
sidewalk along the eastern side of FM 1670. Sidewalks are also required on streets 
adjacent to all schools. There is a Montessori School along the west side of FM 
1670, approximately 0.6 mile south of this subdivision. The developer requested a 
variance to this requirement since there are no sidewalks with which to connect and 
Bell County does not require sidewalks. Additionally, a variance to this requirement 
was granted to The Meadows Subdivision for these reasons; however, at that time, 
the Montessori school was not in its current location. She said it would be desirable 
for the Council to carefully evaluate this issue because: 
   



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 5 
 

  

• This area is undergoing significant residential development, so if sidewalks are 
provided with future development, then the opportunity for a connected sidewalk 
system will increase;  

• Salado High School is located just west of the intersection of FM 1670 and FM 
2484 to the south, so in the future, there could very well be several students living 
along FM 1670 that would be traveling to the school;  

• There is a Montessori School on the west side of FM 1670 south of this 
subdivision; this was not in existence in this location until January this year; 

• Residents have the ability to walk along local streets, but may choose to walk or 
run along FM 1670 if a safe path is provided;  

• The KTMPO Regional Thoroughfare and Pedestrian/Bicycle Plan shows future 
bicycle/pedestrian improvements along FM 1670. 

 
Mrs. Maxwell explained that given these considerations, Staff feels there is a basis 
to support application of the sidewalk requirement, and suggested funds be placed 
in an escrow account with the City. If the funds are not expended within nine years, 
the funds will be returned with any interest that has been earned. A cost estimate of 
$23,000 was prepared by the applicant. She added that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission considered sidewalks a reasonable recommendation given current and 
anticipated development conditions. 
 
Since this subdivision is proposed to contain 47 residential lots, a dedication of 0.47 
acres of parkland or a $9,400 fee-in-lieu of land dedication is required according to 
the Subdivision Ordinance. The developer is requesting a variance to the parkland 
requirements since the lots in this subdivision are a minimum 0.50 acre and there 
are no current plans to develop a park in this area. Staff supports the request, but 
encourages the development of an HOA-owned and maintained neighborhood park 
for the residents in the subdivision.   
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on February 19, 2018 and unanimously 
recommended approval of the preliminary plat of the Taylor Subdivision, subject to 
the City’s Letter to the Applicant’s Engineer dated February 16, 2018, and an access 
limitation along Hollow Drive for Lot 1, Block 1, with a favorable recommendation for 
the following variances, and Staff concurs: 
 
1. Water pressure 
2. Parkland dedication/fee requirement 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended the sidewalk 
variance request not be granted. Mrs. Maxwell stated that the applicant is willing to 
construct the sidewalks in lieu of the payment should the Council desire. 
 
Councilmember Leigh said the area is growing at a fast rate, so he thinks there will 
be a need for sidewalks sooner rather than later. City Manager Sam Listi asked if the 
Council preferred to have the sidewalks constructed or the money deposited in 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 6 
 

  

escrow. Councilmember Leigh and Mayor Pro Tem Pearson said either would be 
fine. 
 
Councilmember Leigh made a motion to approve the plat and grant the variance for 
the water pressure and parkland dedication, as well as requiring either funds to 
construct sidewalks or the construction of sidewalks. The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Dan Kirkley and passed unanimously by a vote of 7-0. 

 
13. Consider a preliminary plat of the Heart of Texas RV Resort Addition, a 12.0 

acre tract of land, located on the east side of South Interstate Highway 35, 
extending to Toll Bridge Road and approximately 0.45 miles south of Shanklin 
Road in the City limits of Belton. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Pearson announced that he would be abstaining from this item. 
 
Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell said this is a 1-lot subdivision plat proposed as 
the Heart of Texas RV Resort Addition. On May 9, 2017, this property was zoned 
Planned Development Commercial Highway Zoning District for a Recreational 
Vehicle (RV) park. This property is directly adjacent to both IH-35 (west) and Toll 
Bridge Road (east).  
 
Mrs. Maxwell said the plat was originally presented to the City Council in September 
of 2017. There were three issues at that time that needed to be addressed: water 
extension, sewer extension and perimeter street improvements. The Council did not 
approve the plat at that time. 
 
The applicant has previously agreed to extend a 14” waterline from the existing 14” 
waterline stub-out just south of his property along IH-35 to his northern property 
boundary. Mrs. Maxwell explained that an 8” waterline is required to serve this 
property, but Staff recommends utilizing approximately $31,420 in Utility Department 
funds to oversize the waterline from an 8” to a 14”. 
 
City staff previously recommended the developer extend an 8” sewer line to serve 
this proposed development a distance of 1800 feet (1,000’ to connect the proposed 
sewer line plus 800’ linear lot frontage), with the City funding the oversize from 8” to 
14”. The applicant’s engineer has submitted a letter requesting a variance to the 
sewer extension requirements. Mrs. Maxwell said the applicant is proposing to install 
an on-site disposal system to serve the RV park’s 100 units, and has stated the 
development will be designed to connect to the sewer when available. A letter has 
been provided from the Bell County Public Health District allowing on-site disposal. 
Maxwell added that Staff recommends approval of this variance request. 
 
Mrs. Maxell stated that Toll Bridge Road functions as a collector street and requires 
a total of 60 feet of ROW. Existing Toll Bridge Road ROW ranges from 40-48 feet in 
width adjacent to this proposed subdivision. Staff recommends a ROW dedication of 
30 feet from the center of the ROW, which will result in a ROW dedication of 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 7 
 

  

approximately 2 feet on the north side, 10 feet in the middle, and 4 feet on the south 
side from this property. 
 
Mrs. Maxwell explained that the Subdivision Ordinance requires the developer to 
build or contribute funds for one half the total cost of paving with curb and gutter for 
the portion of roadway adjacent to this plat. Originally, the applicant’s engineer 
submitted a letter requesting a variance to the perimeter street improvement 
requirements, and stated that no access will be provided from this development to 
Toll Bridge Road. Maxwell explained that the perimeter street improvements to Toll 
Bridge Road are necessary to develop this property adequately and provide 
circulation for this development without causing a burden on adjacent properties or 
the public.  
 
The applicant’s engineer has submitted a perimeter street cost estimate for the 
property frontage of 800 linear feet along Toll Bridge Road that identifies a cost of 
$187,073.95. Staff previously recommended eliminating the sidewalk and curb and 
gutter in effort to reduce the cost burden on the applicant, and continues to 
recommend this. The alternative cost estimate without sidewalks, curb and gutter is 
$119,960. Maxwell said Staff recommends that the applicant upgrade the street or 
contribute funding for the alternate perimeter street improvement requirements.  
 
City staff worked with the applicant and developed options that satisfy the intent of 
the Subdivision Ordinance to reconstruct and widen the Toll Bridge Road pavement. 
The developer’s previous proposal did not achieve that, providing only a 
maintenance treatment. The applicant has now agreed to City Recommended 
Option 1 as described below: 
 

City Recommended Option 1 
Center cut street 
Remove 9” of existing pavement and set grade on new 9.5’ extension 
Add crushed limestone base material per City approved specs over entire 18.5’ 
section (new and existing) 
Add 2” HMAC asphalt overlay on entire 18.5’ section 

 
Mrs. Maxwell said that the Planning and Zoning Commission met on February 19, 
2018 and unanimously recommended approval of the preliminary plat of the Heart of 
Texas RV Resort Addition, subject to these four essential conditions, and Staff 
concurs: 
 
1. Provision of a 14” water line with reimbursement by the City for oversize costs 

over an 8”; construction plans are required. 
2. Provision of perimeter street improvement section, as recommended by the 

Director of Public Works: City Recommended Option 1 - no curb/gutter or 
sidewalk. 

3. ROW dedication to achieve 30’ from the center of the current ROW—2’ to 10’ 
needed. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 8 
 

  

4. Approval of a variance for the extension of sanitary sewer service, given the 
1,000’ distance to proposed sewer, conditioned on providing connection to each 
RV site for future connection to sewer. 

 
Councilmember Kirkley expressed his appreciation to the City Staff and the 
Developer for working together to arrive at a compromise. Councilmember Leigh 
agreed. He said he still has “heartburn” over not installing the sewer line, but he 
understands the cost involved in doing so. He suggested that Staff look at the 
ordinance related to RV Parks, and the time allowed to reside therein.  
 
Councilmember O’Banion agreed with Mr. Leigh, and added it would have been 
better if the compromise with the developer could have been reached sooner. 
 
Upon a motion for approval (subject to the conditions discussed) by Councilmember 
Holmes, and a second by Councilmember O’Banion, Item 13 was approved by a 
vote of 6-0-1 with Mayor Pro Tem Pearson abstaining. 
 

14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 
agreement with Halff Associates for redesign of the South Belton Sewer 
Project Phase II. 

 
Director of Public Works Angellia Points reminded the Council of its decision to 
reevaluate Phase II of the South Belton Sewer Project with the award of Phase I and 
Change Order No. 1 on February 13, 2018. The change order increased the line 
sizes, assuming Phase II would be redesigned to lower the lift station, which will 
allow additional area to be served by gravity sewer east of Toll Bridge Road. City 
Staff worked with Halff Associates to develop a scope of services. 
 
Mrs. Points provided the “Big Picture” for the South Belton Sewer project, and that is 
attached as Exhibit “A.” 
 
Councilmember Leigh thanked the Staff and engineers with Halff Associates for the 
consideration of the redesign of the sewer line. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Paul Sanderford, and a second by 
Councilmember Kirkley, item 14 was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 
 

15. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Oldcastle 
Materials - Wheeler for the construction of 2018 Street Overlay Project, and 
any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under State law. 

 
Director of Public Works Angellia Points said that this contract represents Year 4 of 
the 5-Year Street Maintenance Plan. The Year 4 project is shown in Exhibit “B.” 
 
Mrs. Points said the project is fully funded, and Staff recommends awarding the 
contract to Old Castle Materials - Wheeler of Belton in the amount of $495,112.14.  



Belton City Council Meeting 
February 27, 2018 – Page 9 
 

  

Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Pearson, and a second by Councilmember Dan 
Kirkley, item 15 was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 

 
Executive Session 
 
16. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.072, for a deliberation regarding 
real property. 
 

17. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, 
Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.074, Personnel - conduct an 
evaluation of the City Manager’s performance. 
 

The Mayor announced that the Executive Session is not necessary. There being no 
further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 6:10 p.m. 

 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 

 



So
ut

h 
Be

lt
on

 
Se

w
er

 S
ys

te
m

Ph
as

e 
II 

Re
de

si
gn

: 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
7,

 2
01

8
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il

acasey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"



St
at

us


Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
3,

 2
01

8 
–

Ph
as

e 
I B

id
 A

w
ar

d 
w

it
h 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

 N
o.

 1
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 

lin
e 

si
ze

s.
 


Th

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
rd

er
 a

ss
um

ed
 P

ha
se

 II
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

lo
w

er
ed

, 
w

hi
ch

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 a

llo
w

s 
fo

r 
m

or
e 

fl
ow

 t
o 

be
 s

en
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

So
ut

h 
Be

lt
on

 
Se

w
er

 S
ys

te
m

. 


St

af
f 

w
or

ke
d 

w
it

h 
H

al
ff

As
so

ci
at

es
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

sc
op

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 r
ed

es
ig

n 
Ph

as
e 

II.
 



Ph
as

e 
I

Ph
as

e 
II



St
af

f 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

“B
ig

 P
ic

tu
re

” 
of

 S
ou

th
 B

el
to

n 
Se

w
er

1.
In

cr
ea

se
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a 

of
 S

ou
th

 
Be

lt
on

 S
ew

er
: 

Lo
w

er
 li

ft
 s

ta
ti

on
 a

nd
 

in
cr

ea
se

 s
ew

er
 li

ne
 s

iz
es

 t
o 

ha
nd

le
 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 f

lo
w

s.

2.
Se

rv
e 

BI
SD

 b
y 

pr
iv

at
e 

lif
t 

st
at

io
n 

th
at

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 in
to

 
th

e 
M

it
ch

el
l B

ra
nc

h 
se

w
er

 li
ne

. 

3.
Ar

ea
 e

as
t 

of
 S

ou
th

 B
el

to
n 

Se
w

er
 

ar
ea

 t
o 

be
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
re

gi
on

al
 li

ft
 s

ta
ti

on
, 

if
 n

ee
de

d 
in

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 
Co

ns
id

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

 
Sh

ad
y 

La
ne

 P
ro

je
ct

. 

4.
Ph

as
e 

III
 (

lim
e 

gr
ee

n)
 o

f 
SB

SS
 is

 
so

ut
he

rn
 g

ra
vi

ty
 a

nd
 b

or
e 

un
de

r 
IH

-
35

. 

EX
PO

 C
en

te
r

Re
de

si
gn

 P
ha

se
 II

: 
Lo

w
er

 t
he

 
Li

ft
 S

ta
ti

on
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 &
 

In
cr

ea
se

 li
ne

 s
iz

es

Aw
ar

d 
Ph

as
e 

I a
nd

 C
O

 N
o.

 1
 

fo
r 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Li

ne
 S

iz
es

Ad
d 

ap
pr

ox
. 

36
0

ac
re

s 
(o

r 
ab

ou
t 

30
% 

m
or

e)
 t

ha
t 

ca
n 

be
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 
gr

av
it

y 
fl

ow
; 

In
cr

ea
se

 le
ng

th
 o

f 
gr

av
it

y 
lin

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 L

S 
to

w
ar

d 
Ce

da
r 

Cr
es

t 
to

 m
ax

im
iz

e 
se

rv
ic

ea
bi

lit
y 

&
 in

cr
ea

se
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

To
ll 

Br
id

ge
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

La
m

pa
sa

s 
Ri

ve
r

BI
SD

 
Pr

op
er

ty

20
16

 
An

ne
xa

ti
on

 
Ar

ea



BI
SD

 
Si

te

Th
re

e 
Cr

ee
ks

TB
W

W
TP

St
af

f 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
1.

DO
N

E 
-A

w
ar

d 
Ph

as
e 

I w
it

h 
Ch

an
ge

 O
rd

er
 N

o.
 1

2.
TO

DA
Y 

-
Re

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

 P
ha

se
 II

3.
FU

TU
RE

 -
De

si
gn

 M
it

ch
el

l B
ra

nc
h 

Se
w

er

Re
ce

nt
 C

DB
G

 
Pr

oj
ec

t

Sh
ad

y 
La

ne
 D

es
ig

n 
to

 
ha

nd
le

 S
BS

S 
fl

ow
s 

Ph
as

e 
I o

f 
SB

SS
Re

co
m

m
en

d 
Aw

ar
d 

w
it

h 
Ch

an
ge

 O
rd

er
 

fo
r 

la
rg

er
 li

ne
 s

iz
in

g 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
se

w
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a 
to

 t
he

 
ea

st
 a

nd
 s

ou
th

Re
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
 P

ha
se

 II
 t

o 
se

rv
e 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a;

 
lo

w
er

 li
ft

 s
ta

ti
on

 a
nd

 s
ew

er
 li

ne
s;

 
in

cr
ea

se
 li

ne
 s

iz
es

De
si

gn
 M

it
ch

el
l B

ra
nc

h 
Se

w
er

 
to

 h
an

dl
e 

ex
is

ti
ng

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 

fl
ow

s 
an

d 
BI

SD
 a

nd
 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

pr
op

er
ti

es
. 



Ph
as

e 
II 

Re
de

si
gn

 S
co

pe
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

es


Re

de
si

gn
 t

o 
lo

w
er

 t
he

 li
ft

 s
ta

ti
on

 a
nd

 s
ew

er
 li

ne
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l g
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l,
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
, 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
, 

an
d 

m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l i

m
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
s


Ex

te
nd

 t
he

 g
ra

vi
ty

 li
ne

 a
s 

fa
r 

no
rt

h 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 n

or
th

 o
f 

Sh
an

kl
in

Ro
ad

 


O

PC
Cs

 a
nd

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
ha

se
s


TC

EQ
 a

nd
 T

xD
O

T
Pe

rm
it

ti
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s


Bi

d 
Ph

as
e 

Se
rv

ic
es


Co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 P

ha
se

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
–

fa
m

ili
ar

 w
it

h 
pr

oj
ec

t 
sc

op
e 

of
 w

or
k,

 b
id

di
ng

 c
lim

at
e,

 
an

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 t

he
 w

or
k


To

ta
l f

ee
 =

 $
96

,9
20



N
ex

t 
St

ep
s 

an
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

1.
Re

de
si

gn
 P

ha
se

 II
 o

f 
So

ut
h 

Be
lt

on
 

Se
w

er
 S

ys
te

m

2.
De

si
gn

 S
ha

dy
 L

an
e 

Se
w

er
 t

o 
ha

nd
le

 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 f
lo

w
s 

fr
om

 S
BS

S

3.
De

si
gn

 IH
-3

5 
w

at
er

lin
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
in

 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 g
ro

w
th

 f
un

de
d 

by
 

BE
DC

4.
Co

nt
in

ue
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
ea

se
m

en
t 

ac
qu

is
it

io
n 

of
 N

or
th

 B
el

to
n 

W
at

er
 

Ta
nk

 a
nd

 W
at

er
lin

e;
 c

on
st

ru
ct

5.
Co

or
di

na
te

 w
it

h 
Tx

DO
T

on
 L

oo
p 

12
1 

U
ti

lit
y 

Re
lo

ca
ti

on
co

st
s 

an
d 

pr
ep

ar
e 

fo
r 

TB
W

W
TP

 P
ha

se
 II

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

6.
De

si
gn

 M
it

ch
el

l B
ra

nc
h 

Se
w

er
 f

or
 

Th
re

e 
Cr

ee
ks

, 
BI

SD
 p

ro
pe

rt
y,

 a
nd

 
po

te
nt

ia
l s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
Fu

nd
in

g:
 $

9.
7M

 in
 2

01
6 

W
/S

 C
O

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
:


$2

,5
54

,2
88

.9
0 

Ph
as

e 
I +

 C
O

 N
o.

 1
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 


$1

65
,7

00
 S

ha
dy

 L
an

e 
Se

w
er

 D
es

ig
n


$9

6,
92

0 
Re

de
si

gn
 P

ha
se

 II


~$

4.
0M

 N
or

th
 B

el
to

n 
W

at
er

 T
an

k 
an

d 
Li

ne


~$

0.
3M

 M
it

ch
el

l B
ra

nc
h 

Se
w

er
 D

es
ig

n

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 =

 $
2.

5M
 t

o 
fu

nd
 o

r 
pa

rt
ly

 
fu

nd
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g:
 


Ph

as
e 

II 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 (

es
ti

m
at

ed
 t

o 
be

 $
2.

8M
) 


Sh

ad
y 

La
ne

 s
ew

er
 (

es
ti

m
at

ed
 t

o 
be

 $
1-

$1
.3

M
)


M

it
ch

el
l B

ra
nc

h 
se

w
er

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
($

TB
D)



Sc
he

du
le

 a
nd

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on


3.

5 
m

on
th

s 
to

 r
ed

es
ig

n 
Ph

as
e 

II


TC

EQ
 P

er
m

it
ti

ng
 –

de
pe

nd
en

t 
up

on
 T

CE
Q

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
im

e


1 

m
on

th
 f

or
 b

id
 p

ha
se


Co

un
ci

l c
on

si
de

ra
ti

on
 


12

 m
on

th
s 

fo
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

: 

Re
co

m
m

en
d 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

 t
o 

en
te

r 
in

to
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
ag

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h 
H

al
ff

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

fo
r 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 e
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
So

ut
h 

Be
lt

on
 S

ew
er

 P
ha

se
 II

 R
ed

es
ig

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t
in

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

$9
6,

92
0.



FY
20

18
 –

Ye
ar

 4
 

St
re

et
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

ro
je

ct
Bi

d 
Aw

ar
d 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
7,

 2
01

8

1

acasey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "B"



Pr
oj

ec
t S

um
m

ar
y

•
5-

Ye
ar

 S
tr

ee
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

la
n 

(S
M

P)
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 in
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

14
 b

y 
Le

e 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng


A 
to

ta
l o

f $
6.

0 
m

ill
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
5-

ye
ar

 p
la

n 
(A

bo
ut

 
$1

.2
M

/y
ea

r 
is

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 fu

lly
 m

ee
t t

he
 p

la
n)


Va

ri
ou

s 
tr

ea
tm

en
t t

yp
es

 

•
FY

 2
01

5 
St

re
et

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
un

ds
 –

Ye
ar

 1


$1
68

,1
56

 to
 tr

ea
t 4

.2
 m

ile
s 

(6
.6

%
)

•
FY

 2
01

6 
Ye

ar
 2

 F
un

di
ng


$1

,4
37

,4
33

 to
 tr

ea
t 1

8.
9 

m
ile

s 
(3

0%
)

•
FY

 2
01

7 
Ye

ar
 3

 F
un

di
ng


$9

26
,3

95
.2

3 
to

 tr
ea

t 6
.5

 m
ile

s 
(1

0.
3%

)

•
To

da
y’

s 
A

ct
io

n:
 F

Y2
01

8 
Ye

ar
 4

 o
f t

he
 S

M
P


$4

95
,1

12
.1

4 
to

 tr
ea

t a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

3.
3 

m
ile

s 
(5

.1
%

)

2



Tr
ea

tm
en

t
20

15
 ~

 Y
1

20
16

 -
Y2

20
17

 –
Y3

20
18

 –
Y4

Y5
 a

nd
 B

ey
on

d

Ch
ip

 S
ea

l
2.

5 
m

ile
s

16
.2

 m
ile

s
4.

0 
m

ile
s

-
28

 m
ile

s
Tr

ea
tm

en
t T

yp
e

is
 T

BD
D

ou
bl

e 
Ch

ip
 

Se
al

1.
5

m
ile

s
1.

1
m

ile
s

-
-

H
M

AC
 O

ve
rl

ay
-

2.
4

m
ile

s
2.

6
m

ile
s

3.
3 

m
ile

s

Re
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
0.

37
 m

ile
s

-
-

-
2.

3 
m

ile
s

Ap
pr

ox
. $

6M
 in

 D
es

ig
n 

&
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

s

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

4.
2 

m
ile

s
(6

.6
%

)
18

.9
 m

ile
s

(3
0%

)
6.

5 
m

ile
s

(1
0.

3%
)

3.
3 

m
ile

s
(5

.1
%

)
30

.3
 m

ile
s

(4
8%

)

To
ta

l C
os

t
Ch

ip
 S

ea
l: 

$1
68

,1
56

($
2.

72
/S

Y)

Ch
ip

 S
ea

l: 
$9

68
,2

15
($

3.
36

/S
Y)

H
M

AC
 O

ve
rl

ay
:

$4
69

,2
18

 
($

11
.3

3/
SY

)

To
ta

l:
$1

,4
37

,4
33

Ch
ip

 S
ea

l: 
$2

52
,3

36
 

($
4.

61
/S

Y)

H
M

AC
O

ve
rl

ay
:

$6
74

,0
60

($
16

.0
2/

SY
)

To
ta

l:
$9

26
,3

96

H
M

A
C

 O
ve

rl
ay

: 
$4

95
,1

12
.1

4
($

8.
82

/S
Y)

Fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s

un
kn

ow
n

3
N

ot
e:

 6
3.

3 
To

ta
l M

ile
s 

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

5-
Ye

ar
 S

M
P

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
Y1

8



20
18

 S
tr

ee
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

la
n 

•
Sc

op
e 

of
 W

or
k:


O

ne
 ty

pe
 o

f t
re

at
m

en
t: 

A
sp

ha
lt 

O
ve

rl
ay


Tr

af
fic

 C
on

tr
ol


RO

W
 P

re
p 

(s
w

ee
pi

ng
, b

la
di

ng
 b

ac
k 

gr
as

s,
 le

ve
l u

p)


Cu
rb

 r
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ne
ar

 1
41

0 
N

 P
en

el
op

e 


6”
 F

ul
l M

ill
 a

nd
 O

ve
rl

ay
 o

n 
W

 8
th

Av
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

W
el

ls
 a

nd
 S

hi
ne

 


Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 to
 m

an
ho

le
s 

an
d 

va
lv

e 
co

ve
rs


Pa

ve
m

en
t M

ill
in

g 
al

on
g 

ed
ge

s 
an

d 
pa

ve
m

en
t i

nt
er

se
ct

io
ns


2”

 H
M

AC
 O

ve
rl

ay


Pa
ve

m
en

t M
ar

ki
ng

s 


M
ob

ili
za

tio
n,

 b
on

ds
, i

ns
ur

an
ce

4



Ye
ar

 4
 -

Pr
op

os
ed

5



Ye
ar

 4
 -

Pr
op

os
ed

6



Bi
d 

Re
su

lts
, F

un
di

ng
, R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n
B

ID
 R

E
SU

LT
S

B
as

e 
B

id
 

B
id

 A
m

ou
nt

O
ld

 C
as

tle
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 -W
he

el
er

, B
el

to
n

$4
95

,1
12

.1
4

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
Pa

vi
ng

, A
us

tin
$6

50
,0

82
.9

5
Al

ph
a 

Pa
vi

ng
, R

ou
nd

 R
oc

k
$7

20
,6

86
.5

0
Au

st
in

 M
at

er
ia

ls
, A

us
tin

$8
26

,4
70

.9
5

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
s

A
m

ou
nt

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 F

un
ds

 fr
om

 F
Y1

7
$2

51
,5

04
FY

18
 S

tr
ee

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
un

ds
$1

66
,0

00
FY

17
 B

ud
ge

t A
m

en
dm

en
t

$2
25

,0
00

“O
ne

-ti
m

e”
 B

oo
st

 to
 S

tr
ee

t 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
 in

 F
Y1

8
$1

50
,0

00

TO
TA

L
$7

92
,5

04

Sc
he

du
le

1.
Co

ns
id

er
 a

w
ar

d 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

: F
eb

ru
ar

y 
27

, 2
01

8
2.

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ea
dl

in
e:

 A
ug

us
t 1

, 2
01

8

R
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

Aw
ar

d 
bi

d 
an

d 
au

th
or

iz
e 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 e

xe
cu

te
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

8 
St

re
et

 
O

ve
rl

ay
 P

ro
je

ct
 in

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f $
49

5,
11

2.
14

 w
ith

 O
ld

 C
as

tle
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 –
W

he
el

er
, a

nd
 a

ny
 ch

an
ge

 
or

de
rs

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

, n
ot

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

un
de

r s
ta

te
 la

w
.



City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #5 
     
Consider a resolution approving a reduction in rates charged by Atmos Energy Corporation, 
Mid-Tex Division, and authorizing consent to a reduction in rates charged by Atmos Pipeline 
Texas, related to the reduction in the Federal Corporation tax rate. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Finance – Brandon Bozon, Director of Finance 
 
Summary Information 
 
The City is a member of the Atmos Texas Municipalities (ATM).  The ATM group was 
organized by a number of municipalities served by Atmos and has been represented by the 
law firm of Herrera Law & Associates, PLLC (through Mr. Alfred R. Herrera).  ATM also 
retained the services of a consulting firm, Utilitech, Inc. (Mr. Mike Brosch and Mr. Steve 
Carver) to assist in reviewing Atmos Energy-Mid-Tex Division (Atmos) and Atmos Pipeline 
Texas’ rate data. Herrera Law & Associates, PLLC and Utilitech, Inc. have participated in 
prior rate cases involving Atmos and have extensive knowledge and experience in rate 
matters affecting Atmos’ rates, operations, and services. 
 
PASS THROUGH OF REDUCTION IN FEDERAL-INCOME-TAX RATE: 
Effective January 1, 2018 the U.S. Congress changed the federal-income-tax (“FIT”) laws, 
by among other things, reducing the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%. 
 
Atmos MidTex’ current rates are based on a FIT expense of 35% and thus, absent a change 
in its rates, Atmos MidTex would stand to reap a windfall related to the difference in FIT 
expense between a tax rate of 35% and 21%. 
 
ATMOS MIDTEX: Atmos MidTex seeks to pass through to ratepayers the reduction in FIT 
expense as expeditiously as possible.  To that end, the Utilities Code § 104.111 allows for a 
utility like Atmos MidTex to reduce its rates without the need to file a full-blown cost-of-
service study and allows for administrative approval of the decrease by the appropriate 
regulatory authority.    
 
The City, under Utilities Code § 103.001 is the appropriate regulatory authority for Atmos 
MidTex’ rates within the City. 
 
Atmos Energy is seeking administrative approval of a reduction rates charged by Atmos 
MidTex as expeditiously as possible to begin passing through to ratepayers the reduction in 
Atmos MidTex’ rates.  The reduction in Atmos MidTex’ revenues is about $29 million. 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 2 of 2   
 

ATMOS PIPELINE TEXAS (“APT”): Atmos Pipeline Texas (“APT”) is a separate department 
within Atmos Energy.   APT is seeking the City’s consent to a decrease in rates for Atmos 
Pipeline Texas.  APT will employ Utilities Code § 104.111 to implement its proposed 
decrease in rates. 
 
The Railroad Commission of Texas has exclusive jurisdiction over APT’s rates and the City’ 
rate-setting authority does not extend to APT.  But in order for APT to obtain the Railroad 
Commission’s approval of the decrease in APT’s rates, all affected parties must agree to the 
decrease.  The City, as part of ATM, participated in APT’s most recent rate case at the 
Railroad Commission of Texas, Gas Utility Docket No. 10580 (“GUD No. 10580”), and is 
thus an affected party.   
 
So, APT requires the City’s consent to decrease its rates and to obtain the Railroad 
Commission’s approval of that decrease in rates.  The reduction in Atmos Pipeline Texas’ 
revenues is about $29 million. 
 
Fiscal Impact  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation 
 
After a series of discussions with Atmos Energy and a review of the data Atmos MidTex and 
Atmos Pipeline Texas provided, ATM’s Special Counsel recommends that the City: 
 

1. Approve Atmos MidTex’ reduction in rates by about $29 million to implement the 
reduction in the federal-income-tax rate from 35% to 21%, and require to file 
conforming tariffs and changes to its rates to give effect to the reduction in 
revenue; and 
 

2. Consent to Atmos Pipeline Texas’ reduction in rates, also by about $29 million, to 
implement the reduction in the federal-income-tax rate from 35% to 21%; and that 
the City authorize the City and ATM’s Special Counsel, Mr. Alfred R. Herrera, 
Herrera Law & Associates, PLLC to sign the consent. 

 
Approving Atmos MidTex’ and Atmos Pipeline Texas’ proposed reduction in revenue will 
result in a reduction in the rates ultimately paid by Atmos MidTex’ ratepayers. 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 
Letter from Atmos Energy  



  

 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-08-R 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS (“CITY”), APPROVING A 
REDUCTION IN RATES CHARGED BY ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION, MID-TEX 
DIVISION (“ATMOS”) AND AUTHORIZING CONSENT TO A REDUCTION IN RATES 
CHARGED BY ATMOS PIPELINE TEXAS (“APT”), ALL RELATED TO THE 
REDUCTION IN THE FEDERAL CORPORATE TAX RATE; FINDING THE 
REDUCTION IN ATMOS’ RATES TO BE JUST AND REASONABLE; FINDING THAT 
THE MEETING COMPLIED WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT; DECLARING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND REQUIRING DELIVERY OF THE RESOLUTION TO THE 
COMPANY AND SPECIAL COUNSEL.   

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas (“City”) is a regulatory authority under the 

Gas Utility Regulatory Act “GURA”) and under § 103.001 of GURA has exclusive original 

jurisdiction over Atmos Energy Corporation – Mid-Tex Division (“Atmos”) rates, 

operations, and service of a gas utility within the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the City has participated in prior cases regarding Atmos as part of a 

coalition of cities known as the Atmos Texas Municipalities (“ATM”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate Review Mechanism (“RRM”) for 2017 filed with 

the City on or around March 1, 2017, the City approved an increase in annual revenue of 

about $48 million; and 

WHEREAS, the City, as part of ATM participated in APT’s general rate case at the 

Railroad Commission of Texas in Gas Utility Docket No. 10580 (“GUD No. 10580”); and 

WHEREAS, the corporate tax rate on federal income included in Atmos’ current 

rates and made part of the $48 million increase in revenue approved via the RRM, was 

based on a federal-income-tax rate of 35%; and 

WHEREAS, the corporate tax rate on federal income included in APT’s current 

rates and approved by the Railroad Commission of Texas in GUD No. 10580, was based 

on a federal-income-tax rate of 35%; and 



  

 
 

2 

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2018, the corporate tax rate on income is 21%; 

and 

WHEREAS, Atmos seeks administrative approval under Utilities Code § 104.111 

to reduce its annual revenue by approximately $29 million; and 

WHEREAS, APT seeks the City’s consent to a decrease in rates for APT’s rates 

to be approved by the Railroad Commission of Texas, which decrease would reduce 

APT’s annual revenue by about $29 million; and 

WHEREAS, ATM’s Special Counsel and consultants engaged to review Atmos’ 

and APT’s calculation of the effect of the reduction in the corporate federal-income-tax 

rate from 35% to 21% has on Atmos’ and APT’s rates, have confirmed Atmos’ and APT’s 

calculation of the reduction in Atmos’ and APT’s revenue is mathematically accurate; and  

WHEREAS, the reduction in Atmos’ annual revenue is limited to the tax expense 

related to the change in the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% relative to the revenue 

requirement established in Atmos’ RRM in 2017, and to the revenue requirement 

established in in GUD No. 10580 for APT, and thus will need to be adjusted further in a 

future proceeding to account for excess deferred income taxes resulting from the Tax Cut 

and Jobs Act of 2017; and 

WHEREAS, by approving the reduction in Atmos’ rates, and consenting to the 

reduction in APT’s rates, the City, in future proceedings or in other jurisdictions, is under 

no obligation to take the same positions with regard to the methodology resulting in a 

reduction in rates, as the methodology underlying the reduction proposed by Atmos or 

APT, nor shall the City’s approval of the reduction in Atmos’ rates or its consent to the 



  

 
 

3 

reduction in APT’s rates, be used against City in any future proceeding with respect to 

different positions the City may take with regard to setting Atmos’ or APT’s rates. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS THAT: 

Section 1.  The findings set forth in this Resolution are hereby in all things 

approved and incorporated herein. 

Section 2.  Atmos shall submit to the City within fourteen days from the effective 

date of this Resolution, amended tariffs reflecting the reduction in revenue noted above. 

Section 3.  The City’s Special Counsel, Mr. Alfred R. Herrera, Herrera Law & 

Associates, PLLC, is hereby authorized to consent on behalf of the City as part of ATM 

in proceedings before the Railroad Commission of Texas, to the reduction in APT’s 

revenue noted above. 

Section 4.  To the extent any Resolution previously adopted by the City Council is 

inconsistent with this Resolution, it is hereby superseded. 

Section 5.  The meeting at which this Resolution was approved was in all things 

conducted in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government 

Code, Chapter 551. 

Section 6.  If any one or more sections or clauses of this Resolution is judged to 

be unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the 

remaining provisions of this Resolution and the remaining provisions of the Resolution 

shall be interpreted as if the offending section or clause never existed. 

Section 7.  This Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage. 



  

 
 

4 

Section 8.  A copy of this Resolution shall be sent to Atmos Mid-Tex, care of 

Christopher Felan, Vice President of Rates and Regulatory Affairs, Atmos Energy 

Corporation, 5420 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1600, Dallas, Texas 75240 and to Mr. Alfred R. 

Herrera, Herrera Law & Associates, PLLC, 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 950, Austin, 

Texas 78701. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of March, 2018. 

 

       
    
 ________________________________ 

      Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

 
__________________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 

 
 





City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 
     

A. Receive a report on operations of the Belton Christian Youth Center (BCYC); and 
 

B. Consider amendments to the lease agreement between BCYC and the City of Belton. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Parks & Recreation – Matt Bates, Director of Parks & Recreation 
 
Summary Information 
 

A. The BCYC Community Relations Coordinator will share with City Council the progress 
and re-vitalization of the Belton Christian Youth Center, which the board and Staff have 
worked towards the past several months. She will also share some of the exciting 
events and opportunities that will be happening in the near future. 

 
 
B. The City of Belton entered into a 50 year ground lease in 1998 with the Belton Christian 

Youth Center to occupy a portion of Confederate Park. The principal purpose was to 
construct and operate a youth center within this Municipal Community Park. Since 
1998, the original BCYC building was built, along with a major addition authorized in 
2007, and other minor lease amendments followed, including site plan changes for 
playground additions. 

 
This year, in 2018, BCYC is proposing to make three (3) amendments to the current lease 
agreement: 
 

1.  Change BCYC’s physical address to 385 IH-35 Service Rd, Belton TX 76513.  
 

2. Install approximately 465ft of 4’ high Black Vinyl Chain-link fence around the 
playground, swing set, and play area located on the Southern portion of the 
premises. 

 
3. Assume the responsibility of Landscape Maintenance located inside the proposed 

fenced area (approximately 0.8 acres). 
 
BCYC has requested to install this fence for added security during their daily daycare/ 
charter school/and afterschool operations. BCYC will be purchasing the materials required 
for the fence, along with being responsible for installation. In addition, as stated in the 
original lease agreement, BCYC is responsible for the maintenance and repair of all 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 2 of 2   
 

structures that are located inside the BCYC premises. Both parties have agreed that BCYC 
will take over the landscape maintenance (roughly 0.8 acres) inside the fenced area since 
accessibility with Parks and Rec mowers will be restricted and the area is now less 
accessible to the public during BCYC hours of operation. The City will continue to maintain 
the remaining 16 acres of parkland located adjacent to the Center. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of Amendment #8 to lease agreement with BCYC. 
 
Attachments 
 
Lease Agreement Amendment #8 
Map of proposed 4’ Black Vinyl Fence & New Address  



LEASE AGREEMENT – AMENDMENT NO. 8 
BETWEEN THE  

CITY OF BELTON 
AND 

BELTON CHRISTIAN YOUTH CENTER 
 
 

Amendment No. 8 to the lease agreement is made and entered this 13th day of March, 
2018, by and between the CITY OF BELTON, a municipal corporation, referred to in this 
lease as Lessor, and BELTON CHRISTIAN YOUTH CENTER, a not-for-profit Texas 
corporation, referred to in this lease as Lessee. 
 

As an amendment to the original lease agreement, Lessor authorizes the following: 
 

1. Change the lessee physical address to 385 IH-35 Service Rd, Belton TX 76513. 
2. Install approximately 465ft of 4’ high Black Vinyl Chain-link fence around the 

playground, swing set, and play area located on the Southern portion of the premises. 
3. Assume the responsibility of Landscape Maintenance located inside the proposed 

fence area (approximately 0.8 acres). 
 

 THIS LEASE AMENDMENT has been executed by the parties on the date and year 
first above written. 
 
LESSOR: 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF the CITY OF BELTON, Bell County, Texas, has caused 
this Amendment to Lease Agreement to be executed by its City Manager and attested by the 
City Clerk on this the 13th day of March, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
      CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 
 
      By: __________________________________ 
            SAM A. LISTI, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
AMY M. CASEY, City Clerk 
 
 
 



 2 

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF BELL § 
 
 
 BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared SAM A. 
LISTI, City Manager of the CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, known to me to be the person and 
officer whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same as the act and deed of said City and for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed, and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the 13th day of March 2018. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
LESSEE: 
 
      BELTON CHRISTIAN YOUTH CENTER 
 
 
      By: 
      ___________________________________ 
        
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF BELL § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2018 by  

___________________, __________________ of Belton Christian Youth Center, a not-for- 

profit organization, on behalf of said organization. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Texas 
 



VFD TO
 6T

H (4.
00)

4 ' BL A CK
VIN YL

FENCE

7 M
IN

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

S IH
 35

 SERVICE RD

E AV E D

S B
EA

L S
T

E AV E C

C O N F E D E R AT E PA R K D R

S IN
TE

RSTATE
 35

0 120 24060
Feet

Legend
Proposed 4' BCYC Fence

G!. Hydrants

Map Date: 3/1/2018 Aerial Imagery Date: 2017

2018 BCYC LEASE AMENDMENT

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\City Departments\Planning Department\BCYC\2018 BCYC Lease Amendment.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.Ë

53ft
195ft

217ft

Belton Christian Youth Center
BCYC
385 S IH 35 SVC RD



AGENDA ITEM # 6



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CURRENT LEASE

1. Change BCYC’s physical address to:  385 
IH-35 Service Rd, Belton TX 76513.

2. Install approximately 465ft of 4’ high 
Black Vinyl Chain-link fence around the 
playground, swing set, and play area 
located on the Southern portion of the 
premises.

3. Assume the responsibility of landscape 
maintenance located inside the proposed 
fenced area (approximately 0.8 acres).





RECOMMENDATION

• Staff recommends approval of Amendment #8 to the lease agreement with BCYC.



Belton, Texas

Retail Economic Development Plan (Update)
March 2018



Phase 1 and 2 
Research and Community Core 

Analysis 



The Retail Trade Area is the geographical area from which a community’s 
retailers derive a majority (85%) of their business.

Retail Trade Areas





Demographic Reports



Retail Gap (Leakage) Analysis











Site Profiles







Phase 3 – Urban (Downtown) Retail 
Revitalization



March 13 – Downtown Retail Workshop

•Distribution of Reports 
•Tips on how to be success in today’s retail 
market 
•Understanding the Belton Consumer



Phase 4 – Marketing and Branding



Retail Market Profile Flier 



Retailer and Developer Recruitment



Phase 5 – GIS Data Platform



Data-driven Retail Website with: Available Sites, a Dashboard, and          
Geo-Retail Interactive Mapping



Phase 6 and 7 – Retailer and 
Developer Recruitment





Retailer Recruitment Tracking Spreadsheet



Developer Recruitment Tracking Spreadsheet



2017 Retail Trade Shows

•ICSC Deal Making Dallas – November 2017
•Retail Live Austin – August 2017



Phase 8 – Retail Action Plan





Next Steps

•Continued retailer/restaurant/developer 
recruitment 
•Representation at retail conferences 
•Continued Site Identification and Marketing



2018/2019 Retail Trade Shows

•Retail Live Austin – August 2018
•ICSC Red River States – January 2019



AUSTIN, TX
Ph. 662.231.0608 

www.theretailcoach.net
afarmer@theretailcoach.net

Aaron Farmer 662.231.0608



 

 

 
 
 

March 13, 2018 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Belton, Texas: 
 
 
We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements of City of Belton, Texas 
(the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017, and plan to issue our report 
thereon dated March 8, 2018.  Professional standards require that we advise you of the following 
matters relating to our audit. 
 
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 
 
As communicated in our engagement letter dated August 10, 2017, our responsibility, as 
described by professional standards, is to form and express an opinion(s) about whether the 
financial statements that have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented 
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or 
management of your respective responsibilities. 
 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to 
obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement.  An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of the City solely for the purpose of determining our audit 
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 
 
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process.  However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other 
matters to communicate to you. 
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  
 
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously 
communicated to you. 
 
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
 
The engagement team; others in our firm, as appropriate; and our firm have complied with all 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.  



The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Belton, Texas 
March 13, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies.  A 
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the City is included in Note 1 to the 
financial statements.  There has been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in 
significant accounting policies or their application during 2017.  No matters have come to our 
attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the 
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant 
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. 
 
Significant Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s current judgments.  Those judgments are normally based on 
knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
markedly from management’s current judgments. 
 
The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are: 
 

 Valuation allowance for doubtful accounts – Management’s estimate of the allowance for 
doubtful accounts is based upon historical collections.  We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the valuation allowance for doubtful accounts and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements.  
 

 Carrying amounts of capital assets – Management’s estimate of carrying amounts of 
capital assets are the result of historical cost and useful lives of assets estimated based 
upon historical experience and industry suggested standards.  We evaluated the key 
factors and assumptions used to develop the carrying amounts of capital assets and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements. 

 

 Net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources – 
Management’s estimate of net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows 
of resources are based on actuarial assumptions and calculations as of the measurement 
date.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension 
liability and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements. 

 
Financial Statement Disclosures  
 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users.  The financial statement disclosures are 
neutral, consistent, and clear. 



The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Belton, Texas 
March 13, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the 
performance of the audit. 
 
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  
 
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known 
and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, 
and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  Further, professional standards 
require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 
on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial 
statements as a whole.  The attached schedules summarize uncorrected financial statement 
misstatements whose effects in the current and prior periods, as determined by management, are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit 
procedures.  There were no such misstatements noted. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, which could be significant to the City’s financial statements or the auditor’s 
report.  No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 
 
Representations Requested from Management 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
letter dated March 8, 2018. 
 
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters.  Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no 
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 
 
Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 
 
In the normal course of our professional association with the City, we generally discuss a variety 
of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating 
conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of 
material misstatement.  None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as 
the City’s auditors. 



The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Belton, Texas 
March 13, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of 
the changes in net pension liability and related ratios, and the schedule of contributions, which 
are required supplementary information (“RSI”) that supplements the basic financial statements.  
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI.  With respect to this 
supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, 
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI.  We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other 
information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, the City Council and 
management of City of Belton, Texas  and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

March ___, 2018 
 
 
Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. 
P.O. Box 7616 
Waco, Texas  76714-7616 
 
This representation is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the 
City of Belton, Texas (the “City”) as of September 30, 2017 and for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions on whether the 
basic financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of 
operations, and cash flows, where applicable, of the various opinion units of the City in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted for governments in the United States 
of America (“U.S. GAAP”). 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by 
the omission or misstatement.  
 
We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of March ___, 
2018: 
 
Financial Statements 
 
1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter 

dated August 10, 2017, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of 
the various opinion units referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 

2) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 
 

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements. 
 

5) We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and related 
notes. 
 

6) We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation engagements, 
and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have 
been implemented. 



Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. 
March ___, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

 

7) Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 
 

8) Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. 
 

9) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP 
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 

10) The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.  A list of the uncorrected misstatements is 
attached to the representation letter. 
 

11) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 

12) All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are included and other 
joint ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed. 
 

13) All funds and activities are properly classified. 
 

14) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments: Omnibus as amended, and 
GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for 
presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are 
presented as major are considered important to financial statement users. 
 

15) All components of net position, nonspendable fund balance, and restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned fund balance are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 
 

16) Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an 
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position/fund 
balance are available is appropriately disclosed and net position/fund balance is properly 
recognized under the policy. 
 

17) All revenues within the statement of activities have been properly classified as program 
revenues, general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions 
to permanent fund principal. 
 

18) All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 
statement of activities, and allocations, if any, have been made on a reasonable basis. 
 

19) All interfund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and 
reported. 
 

20) Deposits and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed. 
 

21) Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if 
applicable, depreciated. 



Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. 
March ___, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

 

22) All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed 
guidelines. 
 

23) With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value: 
 
a) The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management’s 

intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action. 
 

b) The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are 
appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied. 
 

c) The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. 
 

d) There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements 
and disclosures included in the financial statements. 
 

Information Provided 
 
24) We have provided you with: 

 
a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units, such as records, 
documentation, meeting minutes and other matters; 
 

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 
 

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 
 

25) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 
the financial statements. 
 

26) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 

27) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the City and involves: 
 
a) Management, 

 
b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

 
c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
28) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the City’s 

financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors, regulators, or 
others. 
 

29) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance 
with or deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial reporting practices. 
 

30) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments 
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 



Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. 
March ___, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

 

31) We have disclosed to you the identity of the City’s related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 

32) The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities. 
 

33) We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is 
contingently liable. 
 

34) We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to 
management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 62 
(GASB-62), Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in 
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.  Significant estimates are 
estimates at the balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year.  
Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or 
markets or geographic areas for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt 
normal finances within the next year. 
 

35) We are identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and 
grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement 
amounts, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in 
separate funds. 
 

36) There are no:  
 
a) Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts and 

grant agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial 
statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget 
laws and regulations. 
 

b) Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probably of assertion 
and must be disclosed in accordance with GASB-62. 
 

c) Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed 
by GASB-62. 
 

37) The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on 
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

 
38) We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements that 

would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 
 

39) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related 
notes.  We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including 
that we assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an 
individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or 
experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept 
responsibility for the results of the services.  We have reviewed, approved, and accepted 
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes. 



Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P.C. 
March ___, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

 

40) With respect to the management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the net 
pension liability and related ratios, and schedule of contributions (collectively, “RSI”), we 
acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the RSI in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and we believe the RSI, 
including their form and content, are fairly presented in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The methods of measurement 
and presentation of the RSI have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we 
have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 
 

41) With respect to the combining financial statements and the individual fund financial 
statements and schedules: 
 
a) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the combining financial statements and 

the individual fund financial statements and schedules in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and we believe the 
combining financial statements and the individual fund financial statements and 
schedules, including their form and content, are fairly presented in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The methods 
of measurement and presentation of the combining financial statements and the 
individual fund financial statements and schedules have not changed from those used in 
the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary 
information. 
 

b) If the combining financial statements and the individual fund financial statements and 
schedules are not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the 
audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary 
information no later than the date we issue the supplementary information and the 
auditor’s report thereon. 

 
 

Very truly yours, 
 
      CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 
              
      Sam Listi, City Manager 
 
 
              

Brandon Bozon, CPA, Finance Director 



Total Assets 

and Deferred 

Outflows

Total Liabilities 

and Deferred 

Inflows Fund Balance Revenues Expenditures

Net Change in 

Fund Balance

Amounts Per Financial Statements 7,427,704$      1,180,184        6,247,520        13,994,568      13,769,163      225,405           

Effect of Current Period Uncorrected Misstatements -$                    17,623             (17,623)           (17,623)           -                  (17,623)           

Effect of Prior Period Uncorrected Misstatements 12,845             -                  12,845             

Net Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements -$                    17,623             (17,623)           (4,778)             -                  (4,778)             

1 To properly record property taxes receivable which are 

measurable and available. Client has historically reported 

on a cash basis. -$                    17,623             (17,623)           (17,623)           -                  (17,623)           

Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements - General Fund

Financial Statement Effect of  Uncorrected Misstatements: Over (Under) Statement

No. Description



Total Assets 

and Deferred 

Outflows

Total Liabilities 

and Deferred 

Inflows Fund Balance Revenues Expenditures

Net Change in 

Fund Balance

Amounts Per Financial Statements 196,990$         27,050             169,940           1,110,122        1,098,867        11,255             

Effect of Current Period Uncorrected Misstatements -$                    3,953               (3,953)             (3,953)             -                  (3,953)             

Effect of Prior Period Uncorrected Misstatements 2,912               -                  2,912               

Net Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements -$                    3,953               (3,953)             (1,041)             -                  (1,041)             

1 To properly record property taxes receivable which are 

measurable and available. Client has historically reported 

on a cash basis. -$                    3,953               (3,953)             (3,953)             -                  (3,953)             

Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements - Debt Service Fund

Financial Statement Effect of  Uncorrected Misstatements: Over (Under) Statement

No. Description



Total Assets 

and Deferred 

Outflows

Total Liabilities 

and Deferred 

Inflows Net Position Revenues Expenses

Change in Net 

Position

Amounts Per Financial Statements 10,282,495$    312,322           9,970,173        1,735,673        804,344           931,329           

Effect of Current Period Uncorrected Misstatements -$                    (12,679)           12,679             -                  (12,679)           12,679             

Effect of Prior Period Uncorrected Misstatements -                  6,437               (6,437)             

Net Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements -$                    (12,679)           12,679             -                  (6,242)             6,242               

1 To properly adjust compensated absences payable at year-

end. Client does not typically record liability for 

compensated absences for the component unit. -$                    (12,679)           12,679             -                  (12,679)           12,679             

Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements - Component Unit

Financial Statement Effect of  Uncorrected Misstatements: Over (Under) Statement

No. Description



 

 

 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor, Members of the  
   City Council and Management 
City of Belton, Texas: 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of City of Belton, Texas 
(the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood 
of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 
 

Reasonable possible.  The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than 
remote but less than likely. 
 
Probable.  The future event or events are likely to occur. 

 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City 
Council, and others within the City and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties.  
 
 
 
 
 
March 8, 2018 
 
 
 

Disc
uss

ion
 D

raf
t



City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #9 
 
Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the Sparta 
Road Pump Station Improvements Project, and any change orders associated with the 
contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under State law. 

 
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
Background 
 
The City of Belton currently operates two water pump stations to maintain water pressure for 
all of Belton’s water system. Constructed in 2001, the Sparta Road Pump Station (pump 
station) is located along Sparta Road in Belton’s ETJ at Sparta Loop. Treated water from 
the Bell County WCID No. 1 water treatment plant on Waterworks Road travels from the 
treatment plant to the pump station, where the pump station pumps the water into Belton at 
the necessary pressure. The pump station contains two variable frequency drive pumps, 
which allows the pumps to ramp up and down as needed. The pump station has not had 
any significant maintenance since its installation in 2001. Overtime, the pump drives have 
required minor maintenance on the pump motor and the motor control center. The parts for 
the drives and motor control centers have been increasingly difficult to find. Therefore, Staff 
worked with McCreary & Associates for professional engineering services to provide 
electrical design for the upgrades needed to the pump drives. The proposed improvements 
designed by McCreary & Associates will lengthen the life of the drives and motor control 
centers, and allow for maintenance parts to be readily available. The improvements will also 
add an interlocked breaker and a docking station for a connection to a portable generator, if 
power were to fail at the pump station.  
 
The design was completed in January 2018. The design of the pump station updates was 
opened for bids on February 27, 2018. Four (4) qualified bids were received for the 
construction of the pump station improvements, as shown in the following table.  
 
Contractor     Bid Amount    
Wallace Controls & Electric, Meridian $183,311 
T Morales Company, Florence  $186,540 
AC Electrical Services, Roger  $188,000 
R. K. Bass Electric, Harker Heights $214,385 
 
The Director of Public Works/City Engineer, Assistant Director of Public Works, and Project 
Engineer at McCreary & Associates evaluated the bids and determined Wallace Controls & 
Electric, Inc. of Meridian, Texas, the low bidder, has the capability and experience to 
perform to the requirements of the contract.  



City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 2 of 2   
 

 
After the Notice to Proceed is issued, the contractor will be allowed up to five (5) months to 
complete the project.  
 
If the project is awarded to Wallace Controls, there should minimal to no impact to water 
service during construction. There are two pumps at the pump stations, which are intended 
to run at separate times under normal water demand conditions. The schedule of the work 
will be coordinated between the contractor and Staff to ensure security and continuity of 
water service.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The fiscal impact of the action for this item is $183,311. The funding for the project is 
allocated in the Water & Sewer Capital Project Fund.  
 
Budgeted:   Yes     No  Capital Project Funds 
 
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Wallace Controls & Electric, Inc. for 
the implementation of the Sparta Road Pump Station Improvements.  
 
Attachments 
 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation  
Bid Tabulation 



March 2, 2018 

Ms. Angellia Points, P.E. 
City Engineer 
City of Belton 
P.O. Box 934 
Belton, Texas 76513 

Re: City of Belton 
 Sparta Road Pump Station VFD Repacement 
 Bid #41-09-16 

Dear Angellia, 

On February 27, 2018, the City of Belton received competitive bids from four (4) contractors for 
the Sparta Road Pump Station VFD Replacement Project.  A Bid Tabulation is attached.   

The bids received was for installation of two new VFDs and modifications to the MCC to add a 
portable generator docking station. The project also consists of installation of associated 
harmonic filters and concrete pads for the harmonic filters.     

The attached Bid Tabulation shows Wallace Controls & Electric, Inc., of Meridian, Texas as the 
low bidder with a bid of $183,311.00.  Other bidders were T Morales Company, AC Electric, and 
Robert Bass Electric. The three lowest bidders were within 3% of the low bidder.  

The budget for the project was $175,000 to $200,000 and was based on a cost estimate 
performed by our office and experience with similar projects. The bid price is within the budget.       

We recommend that the contract amount of $183,311.00 be awarded to Wallace Controls for 
this project. Wallace Controls has performed well on numerous waterworks projects that we 
engineered for the City of Waco, Johnson County SUD, City of Alvarado, and the City of 
Cleburne, and is well qualified to complete this project.    

Sincerely,

Joseph Kotrla, P.E. 
McCreary & Associates, Inc.  
Firm Registration No. F-338 

Attachments: Tabulation of Bids 
  Wallace Electric Bid   





Sparta Road Pump Station 
Improvements
Bid Award

March 13, 2018



Project Summary

• Sparta Pump Station was constructed in 2001.

• The pump station receives treated water from BCWCID No. 1, and is located in 
Belton’s ETJ along Sparta Road at Sparta Loop. 

• The pump station maintains water pressure in Belton’s water system. 

• It contains two variable frequency drive pumps and a large motor control center. 

• Maintenance parts are getting difficult to find.  It is time for an upgrade to the 
pump motors and motor control center. 

• Staff worked with McCreary Associates to design electrical upgrades to the 
motors, including an interlocked breaker and a docking station for a connection 
to a portable generator.

• Project bid opening was February 27, 2018. 



Bid Results

• Contractor Bid Amount

• Wallace Controls, Meridian $183,311

• T Morales Company, Florence $186,540

• AC Electrical Services, Roger $188,000

• R. K. Bass Electric, Harker Heights $214,385

• Staff and Project Engineer reviewed the bids and determined Wallace Controls & 
Electric, Inc. has the capability and experience to perform the requirements of the 
Sparta Road Pump Station Improvements Project. 



Schedule & Details
• After the Notice to Proceed is issued, the project 

will be completed in five (5) months. 

• There should be minimal to no impact to water 
service during construction. 

• There are two pumps at the pump stations, which 
are intended to run at separate times under 
normal water demand conditions. 

• The schedule of the work will be coordinated 
between the contractor and Staff to ensure 
security and continuity of water service. 

• The project is funded by the Water & Sewer 
Capital Project Fund. 

Authorize the City 
Manager to execute a 
contract with Wallace 

Controls & Electric, Inc. 
for the implementation 

of the Sparta Road Pump 
Station Improvements

for the amount of 
$183,311. 

Recommendation



Item No. 10
Stormwater 
& Drainage 
Updates



Overview 

Stormwater Management

• TCEQ Requirement; managed 
and enforced by the City 

• MS4 Requirements

• Best Management Practices

• Stormwater Ordinance

• Nolan Creek Flood Protection 
Study

Drainage Capital Projects

• Strategic Drainage Plan

• Master Planning

• Prioritization

• Funding 



Stormwater 
Management

TCEQ
MS4
Best Management Practices
Stormwater Ordinance
Flood Protection Study



Purpose of Stormwater Management
• Under the Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES) 

General Permit, Cities are required to obtain a stormwater discharge 
permit (MS4), develop a 5-year stormwater management plan, and 
provide annual reports. 

• TCEQ’s Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) General Permit. 
Belton’s MS4 permit expires on December 13, 2018, which we will 
apply to renew. 

• Purpose: Reduce the discharge of pollutants to Waters of the United 
States to the Maximum Extent Practicable in order to protect water 
quality.



Best Management Practices 
1. Public Education – Social media, 

flyers to specific businesses, etc. 

2. Illicit Discharge Detection and 
Elimination – Develop program 
and guidelines to detect and 
eliminate harmful discharges by 
training employees and working 
with customers to correct the 
issue.

3. Construction Site Runoff Control 
– Enforce stormwater erosion 
control measures during 
construction.

4. Post-construction Stormwater 
Management – Address runoff 
from new developments by plan 
review and enforcement of 
erosion control measures.

5. Pollution Prevention and Good 
Housekeeping for City 
Operations – Implement an 
operations and maintenance 
program to preventing/reducing 
runoff.



Best Management Practices 

Years 1 – 3 Completed Examples
• Educated residents by social media and businesses 

with flyers

• Diligent and thorough plan review for stormwater 
management 

• Continuous street sweeping to remove debris from 
roadway 

• GIS stormwater infrastructure 

• Implemented a work order system to track 
complaints or concerns 

• Minimized sewer overflows

• Installed signs at the City’s detention areas to bring 
attention to safety

• Adopted Strategic Drainage Plan

Year 4 To-Do List
• Adopt drainage revisions in proposed design 

manual

• Develop a business recognition program

• Employee training in stormwater control and 
maintenance 

• Develop stormwater ordinance regarding 
stormwater protection (including grass clippings in 
roadways), construction runoff, illicit discharges, 
maintenance agreements, etc.

• Flyers, brochures, information in water bills

• Misc. operations and maintenance standard 
operating procedures for municipal stormwater 
activities



Stormwater Ordinance
• Belton currently does not have a 

stormwater ordinance. 

• However, a stormwater master 
plan was adopted and the City 
operates under a MS4 permit, 
which gives the City authority to 
enforce stormwater quality 
activities. 

• A new stormwater ordinance is 
in development. It will mirror 
typical practices in area cities 
and include the following:
• Erosion and sediment control
• Post construction stormwater 

control
• Illicit Discharges 
• Yard waste contamination control 



Nolan Creek Flood Protection Study & 
Early Warning System Update
• May 2016 – Council supported CTCOG’s application to TWDB for a Flood 

Protection Grant for the Nolan Creek Watershed. Belton’s cost share was 
$12,578, with other area cities along Nolan Creek participating. 

• Purpose: Develop base flood map, identification of flood enhancement to  
early warning systems and flood response strategies, develop models, 
evaluate flood mitigation alternatives, prepare implementation plan and 
phasing, prepare the final report.

• Stakeholders meet quarterly to discuss the study. Two public meetings were 
held in August 2017. Staff met with the engineers to discuss a variety of 
drainage issues, concerns, and the flood monitoring system. 

• Final report is expected in early 2019. 



Drainage Capital 
Projects

Strategic Drainage Plan
Master Planning
Prioritization
Funding 



Strategic Drainage Plan and Prioritization
• Adopted on July 11, 2017

• Purpose: To protect the welfare and safety of citizens and visitors, provide orderly, 
acceptable development of existing drainage basins, develop drainage management 
policies that meet regulations, assist the development community with info and 
guidance during development, organize drainage project priorities for capital 
improvement programs over the long term in accordance with this hierarchy of 
priorities.
1. Loss of Life.
2. Loss of residential or non-residential buildings, structures, utilities, improvements or other 

personal physical investments.
3. Inundation of roadways proper and inundation of roadways at stream crossings that could 

cause vehicular/pedestrian accidents or that prevent emergency equipment access/response 
to accidents or disaster events.

4. Erosion to public or private improvements or property which cause an array of maintenance 
issues.

5. Nuisance stormwater runoff or flooding.
6. Citizen complaints that are considered “not in my back yard” issues.



Planned Drainage Projects and Status
• Done: Estate Drive Culvert 

Replacement, 2nd and Muelhouse
Concrete Wall Replacement

• Mesquite Road Culvert 
Replacement and Street Widening: 
Preliminary study done; KPA 
design services proposed in the 
following agenda item

• Liberty Hill Drainage 
Improvements: Study and design 
pending downstream development 
activity to determine best course of 
action



Planned Drainage Projects and Status
• Red Rock Drainage Improvements: 

Preliminary design completed

• Shirttale Bend

• 4th/Blair/Beal

• Turtle Creek Maintenance

• Beal/27th/26th/24th

• 7th and Wells

• Taylor’s Valley Road

• Mitchell Branch east of Connell

• Herrington/Miller Street

• Brenda Lane



Project Priorities and Funding 
1. Liberty Hill Drainage Project = Pending downstream development; 

Costs unknown.

2. Mesquite Road Drainage Improvements = $400,000 Design & 
Construction. 

3. Shirtale Bend – Possibly evaluated in Nolan Creek Flood Protection 
Study. 

4. 4th/Beal/Blair Drainage Issues.

5. Herrington and Miller Street, Red Rock Drainage Improvements, 7th

and Wells, Brenda Lane, Beal at 24th through 27th, Mitchell Branch 
Study, Taylor’s Valley, and Turtle Creek.



Item No. 11
Mesquite Road 
Drainage 
Improvements
Project
Professional Services for Design



Status of Mesquite Road Project
• Identified as a project due to flooding concerns upstream and 

deterioration of the roadway.

• Staff worked with KPA to study the crossing to determine what size 
culverts needed to pass the stormwater. KPA completed a preliminary 
design and analysis. 

• Today’s Action: Consider approving a professional services contract 
with KPA to design the culvert crossing and widened roadway. 



Bell County 
Expo



Existing Conditions Proposed Conditions



Scope of the Project
• Design a detour road either to the south 

or to the north of Mesquite Road

• Design four 6’ by 3’ concrete box culverts

• Widen Mesquite Road from TxDOT ROW 
to just west of the culvert crossings

• ROW and Easement field notes 

• Bid Phase

• KPA Scope of Services = $52,900

• Estimated construction costs = 
$350,000-$375,000

N
orth



Schedule and Recommendation
• Task I – Field survey,  geotechnical investigation, easement field notes

• Task II – Design the project (30%, 60%, 95% stages)

• Task III – TxDOT and Federal permitting process

• Task IV – Bid Phase Services, if & when we proceed with bidding

• Total time = 150 days (5 months)

Recommendation: Recommend authorizing the City Manager to enter 
into a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and 
Associates for professional engineering services for the Mesquite Road 
Drainage Improvement Project in the amount of $52,900.



City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #11 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates for professional engineering services for the Mesquite Road 
Drainage Improvements Project.  
     
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
Summary Information 
 
The drainage culverts under Mesquite Road within the city limits of Belton are failing, 
causing a drainage issue. The existing two 24” reinforced concrete culverts are undersized, 
which causes the stormwater in large rain events to overtop the roadway. Mesquite Road is 
the only point of access for the approximately 25 properties in the Mesquite Road and 
Mesquite Lane area.  
 
Staff worked with KPA to complete a preliminary engineering report to determine the 
improvements needed to the drainage under Mesquite Road. The area is delineated as 
floodplain Zone A per the 2008 FEMA map. Multiple options were explored in order to 
improve the stormwater conveyance at the crossing. Drainage calculations for the 25-year 
and 100-year storm events showed the peak water surface elevations decreased when four 
6’ by 3’ concrete box culverts were modeled. Using four box culverts also contains the 
stormwater water surface elevation to below the roadway.  
 
In addition to the drainage improvements, the design will also include widening Mesquite 
Road to its designated classification: a minor collector. Between TxDOT ROW and just west 
of the culvert crossings, Mesquite Road is proposed to be widened from its existing 18’ of 
pavement to 37’ wide, back-of-curb to back-of-curb, with a right-of-way of 60’. The current 
right-of-way width is between 32’ and 37’. Additional right-of-way will need to be obtained 
during the design process.  
 
Because Mesquite Road is the only means of ingress/egress, a preliminary construction 
plan was developed with the preliminary engineering report. Two options were considered: 
 

1. Option 1 – Utilize a single lane road while the downstream third of the new culverts 
were constructed. Then, switch traffic to the downstream culverts while the remaining 
sections of the culverts were constructed.  

2. Option 2 – Construct a temporary detour and low culvert crossing prior to beginning 
construction of the permanent structure. The detour would be used while the entire 
crossing would be reconstructed.  

 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 13, 2018 

Page 2 of 2   
 

After much evaluation, Option 2 is the preferred option. The estimated costs for both Option 
1 and Option 2 are nearly the same. Option 2 allows for faster construction time, safer 
environment for the contractor, and possibly a more favorable approach for the residents. 
Although the construction of the temporary detour increases the project costs, the costs are 
likely offset by the savings in traffic control and increased time to perform Option 1.  
 
The funding for the redesign is proposed to come from the Drainage Capital Projects fund.  
  
Fiscal Impact 
 
The proposed engineering services contract of $52,900 is proposed to be funded out of the 
Drainage Capital Projects fund.  
 
Amount: $52,900 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No   Capital Project Fund 
 
Estimated construction cost is $350,000. Funding for construction is unknown at this time. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates for professional engineering services for the Mesquite 
Road Drainage Improvements Project. 
 
Attachments 
KPA Proposal  











5 

4. Design Engineer to answer questions and inquiries about the project during the 
bidding process. 

5. Design Engineer will issue any addenda required during the bidding process. 
6. Design Engineer will coordinate and conduct one (1) pre-bid conference for the 

project. 
7. Design Engineer will provide Receipt of Bid Summary Sheet for use on the day 

and time of the bid opening. 
8. Design Engineer will evaluate the bids, prepare a bid tabulation of all bids 

received, evaluate the bidders and provide a bid award recommendation letter to 
the City Engineer. 

9. Design Engineer will incorporate any addenda in the construction drawings 
before the project drawings are released for construction. 

10. Design Engineer will provide 5 half sized sets of the construction drawings and 
one 22” by 34” set of the construction drawings to the City Engineer for use 
during the construction process. 

11. Design Engineer will provide four (4) sets of Contract Documents to the City 
Engineer for execution. 

 
SPECIAL NOTES: 
 
 THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES DOES NOT INCLUDE ROW/EASEMENT ACQUISITION, 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES, SITE VISITS DURING CONSTRUCTION, 
CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING, BOUNDARY SURVEYING OR CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING 
FOR FRANCHISED UTILITY COMPANIES FOR RELOCATION OR ADJUSTMENTS TO THEIR 
INFRASTRUCTURE OR FOR NEW INSTALLATIONS OF THEIR INFRASTRUCTURE, 
CONSTRUCTION TESTING, OR ON-SITE CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION. 

 THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES DOES NOT INCLUDE MEETING WEEKLY AT BELTON CITY HALL 
TO GIVE UPDATES OR REPORTS ON THE DESIGN PROCESS FOR THIS PROJECT. 




	Agenda - 031318
	City Manager's Memo
	#4A - Minutes - 022718 Workshop
	#4B - Minutes - 022718
	#5 - Staff Report - Atmos Energy Rate Reduction
	#5 - Attachments

	#6A&B - Staff Report - BCYC
	#6A&B - Attachments

	#7 - Retail Development Strategy
	#8 - 2017 CAFR
	#9 - Staff Report - Sparta Rd Pump Replacement
	#9 - Attachments

	#10 - Stormwater/Drainage
	#11 - Mesquite Road Drainage
	#11 - Staff Report - KPA Design Contract
	#11 - Attachments




